SKHHP Executive Board
January 16, 2026, 1:00 — 3:00 PM
Virtual Meeting

Video conference:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/998573980287?pwd=eXFiMmJpQm1abDZmMmMRQbHNOYS8

ydz09
OR by phone: 253-205-0468
Meeting ID: 998 5739 8028 Password: 085570
. CALL TO ORDER 1:00

ROLL CALL

INTRODUCTIONS OF STAFF WORK GROUP MEMBERS
AND ADVISORY BOARD REPRESENTATIVE

. PUBLIC COMMENT 1:05
M. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 21, 2025 MEETING 1:07
MINUTES

Motion is to approve the November 21, 2025 SKHHP
Executive Board meeting minutes.

IV.

AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 1:09

BOARD BUSINESS 1:10

ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
Presenter: Claire Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager

Purpose: Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to the SKHHP
Executive Board.

Background: The Chair and Vice Chair are elected annually
from the appointed members of the Board to serve a one-year
term. The Chair presides over Executive Board meetings. The
Vice Chair, in the absence of the Chair, performs all duties
incumbent upon the Chair.

Prior to the meeting, nominations were received as follows:

¢ Nancy Backus for Chair
e Dana Ralph for Vice Chair

Other nominations for Chair and Vice Chair positions may be
brought forward at the meeting.

Motion is to approve the nomination for Chair.

Motion is to approve the nomination for Vice Chair.



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/99857398028?pwd=eXFiMmJpQm1abDZmMmRQbHNOYS8ydz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/99857398028?pwd=eXFiMmJpQm1abDZmMmRQbHNOYS8ydz09

b. UPDATE ON TWG AWARD REALLOCATION 1:20
Presenter: Claire Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager

Purpose: Update the Board on the status of the award to TWG
Development.

Background: TWG Development was awarded $1,940,000
from the 2023 and 2024 funding rounds of the SKHHP
Housing Capital Fund for the construction of Pandion at Star
Lake in Kent. TWG Development is currently prohibited from
accessing any Washington State Housing Finance
Commission financial resources and the project has struggled
to get additional funding commitments. TWG has listed the site
at Pandion at Star Lake for sale. Simultaneously, TWG
applied for funding in October 2025 from Amazon’s Housing
Equity Fund. In August 2025, the Executive Board agreed to
wait until the outcome of the Amazon award was known until
making a decision about the SKHHP award. In November
2025, the Executive Board formally adopted the following three
conditions under which the TWG award allocation would be
rescinded: if the application to the 2025 Amazon Equity Fund
was unsuccessful; if TWG sells the property; or if TWG forfeits
the SKHHP award. An updated status was received on
January 8, 2026.

For review, discussion, and receipt of Board feedback, no
action proposed.

c. 2026 EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING DATES 1:30
Presenter: Claire V. Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager
Purpose: Review the 2026 Executive Board meeting dates.

Background: The SKHHP Executive Board holds monthly
meetings on the third Friday of every month to facilitate
collaboration, information sharing, and decision-making among
South King County partners working to address affordable
housing challenges.

Motion is to approve the 2026 Executive Board meeting
dates

d. ILA AMENDMENT UPDATE - BIENNIAL WORK PLAN AND 1:40
BUDGET

Presenter: Claire V. Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager

Purpose: Update on amending the SKHHP ILA to transition to
a biennial SKHHP Work Plan and Budget.

Background: As part of the SKHHP Five-Year Plan
development, a recommendation was raised to implement a
biennial work plan and budget process, beginning with the
2027-2028 budget cycle. This shift is projected to save staff
time across SKHHP and member jurisdictions leading to a




more efficient administrative process. The Executive Board
supported advancing this concept at its November 2025
meeting.

For review, discussion, and receipt of Board feedback, no
action proposed.

2027-28 WORK PLAN AND BUDGET SURVEY 1:55
Presenter: Claire V. Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager

Purpose: Provide the Executive Board the opportunity to
provide initial feedback to inform the development of the 2027-
28 work plan and budget.

Background: SKHHP’s Interlocal Agreement requires the
Executive Board recommend an annual work plan and budget.
With the forthcoming ILA amendment to transition to a biennial
work plan and budget, a survey has been developed in
preparation for the Executive Board’s in-person workshop on
March 20, 2026 to help inform the development process.

For review, discussion, and receipt of Board feedback, no
action proposed.

2026 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 2:30
Presenter: Dorsol Plants, SKHHP Program Coordinator

Purpose: A brief update of legislation introduced for the 2026
State Legislative Session with a focus on housing and land
use.

Background: The Washington State Legislature is convening
for a regular session beginning January 12, 2026. SKHHP’s
Program Coordinator will monitor and provide updates on
legislation connected with housing at the monthly Executive
Board meetings during the legislative session. Following the
Executive Board's approval of SKHHP's legislative priority on
August 15, 2025, specific attention will be given to any bills
that directly relate to the SKHHP priority.

For review, discussion, and receipt of Board feedback, no
action proposed.

VL. UPDATES/ANNOUNCEMENTS 2:45
e Executive Manager vacation
e Executive Board & Manager check-ins

VII. ADJOURN 3:00




SK: : SKHHP Executive Meeting
o O s Honseet PN November 21, 2025

MINUTES

. CALL TO ORDER
Dana Ralph called the meeting to order at 1:03 PM.

ROLL CALL/ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Executive Board members present: Dana Ralph, City of Kent; Gene Achziger, City of Des
Moines; Victoria Schroff, City of Maple Valley; Eric Zimmerman, City of Normandy Park;
Carmen Rivera, City of Renton; James Lovell, City of SeaTac; Sunaree Marshall, King County;
Angelina Allen-Mpyisi, City of Federal Way (alternate); Anyah Zupancic, City of Burien
(alternate).

Others present: Claire Goodwin, SKHHP Executive Manager; Dorsol Plants, SKHHP Program
Coordinator; James Alberson, City of Renton (alternate); Maria Arns, SKHHP Advisory Board;
Laurel Humphrey, City of Tukwila; Angie Mathias, City of Renton; Merina Hanson, City of Kent;
Affiong Ibok, KCRHA; Jason Gauthier, SSHA®P; McCaela Daffern, King County; Johnny Vong.
Il. PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment was received.

lll. APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 17, 2025 MINUTES

Gene Achziger moved to approve the October 17, 2025 minute as corrected, seconded by
James Lovell. Motion was approved (9-0)

IV. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS
No modifications to the agenda were made.

V. BOARD BUSINESS
a. TWG POTENTIAL AWARD REALLOCATION

Claire Goodwin updated the Board on the TWG Pandion at Star Lake project and reviewed
potential criteria to determine when to rescind the awards granted to TWG.

James Lovell moved to adopt criteria under which SKHHP would rescind the two SKHHP
Housing Capital Fund awards made to TWG for the Pandion at Star Lake project, seconded by
Eric Zimmerman. Motion was approved (9-0)

b. 2025 SKHHP HOUSING CAPITAL FUND RECOMMENDED ALLOCATIONS

Claire Goodwin reviewed the two funding recommendations made by the SKHHP Advisory
Board for the 2025 SKHHP Housing Capital Fund.



Table 1: Funding Recommendation - Scenario 1

Project sponsor and name Recommended | Recommended
funding — funding —
HB 1590 SHB 1406
African Community Housing & Development — $1,200,000 --
African Diaspora Cultural Anchor Village
St. Stephen Housing Association — Steele House | $1,820,850 --
Mental Health Housing Foundation — Steel Lake -- $922,000
TOTAL $3,020,850 $922,000
Table 2: Funding Recommendation - Scenario 2
Project sponsor and name Recommended | Recommended
funding — funding —
HB 1590 SHB 1406
African Community Housing & Development — $2,100,000 -
African Diaspora Cultural Anchor Village
St. Stephen Housing Association — Steele House | $1,820,850 --
Mental Health Housing Foundation — Steel Lake $1,000,000
Multi-Service Center — Maple Lanes Estates -- $922,000
TOTAL $4,920,850 $922,000

Eric Zimmerman moved to approve SKHHP’s 2025 primary Housing Capital Fund allocation
recommendation and secondary Housing Capital Fund allocation recommendation with direction
to forward the primary allocation recommendation to member City Councils participating in the
2025 Housing Capital Fund funding round; provided that, should the TWG awards be rescinded
by December 31, 2025, the Board’s direction is to forward the secondary allocation
recommendation to member City Councils participating in the 2025 Housing Capital Fund
funding round, seconded by Victoria Schroff. Motion was approved (9-0)

c. SKHHP BIENNIAL BUDGET

Claire Goodwin reviewed the proposal to transition the SKHHP budget process to a biennial
cycle, as suggested by the Board during the development of the SKHHP five-year plan.

The Board was supportive of the transition.
d. 2025 THIRD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT
Claire Goodwin reviewed the 2025 Third Quarter Progress Report.



VI.LUPDATES/ANNOUNCEMENTS

James Lovell and Sunaree Marshall raised concerns about the recent modifications to the HUD
Continuum of Care (CoC) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) that provides funding for
Permanent Supportive Housing and other regional homelessness solutions.

Claire Goodwin informed the Board of the cancellation of the December SKHHP Executive
Board meeting. The next scheduled meeting will take place on January 16, 2026.

Claire Goodwin shared with the Board that nominations for the SKHHP Chair and Vice Chair will
be accepted until December 19. The election of new officers is scheduled to occur at the
Executive Board meeting on January 16, 2026.

Claire Goodwin extended an invitation to Board members for individual meetings in preparation
for 2026. She will follow up with scheduling details via email after the meeting.

VIILADJOURN
Dana Ralph adjourned the meeting at 2:17 PM.

Dorsol Plants, Program Coordinator



2026 SKHHP Executive Board Meeting Schedule

Third Friday of Every Month
1:00 pm - 3:00 pm

January 16
February 20
March 20 (in person)
April 17
May 15
June 19 (cancel)
July 17
August 21
September 18 (in person)
October 16
November 20
December 18 (in person)



PP Memorandum

SKalz

South King Housing and Homelessness Partners

TO: SKHHP Executive Board

FROM: Claire Goodwin, Executive Manager

DATE: January 9, 2026

SUBJECT: SKHHP Interlocal Agreement Amendment — Biennial Budget and Work Plan
SUMMARY

As part of the SKHHP five-year planning discussions with the Executive Board, a recommendation was raised to
transition SKHHP’s annual work plan and budget process to a biennial work plan and budget process, effective
beginning with the 2027-2028 budget cycle. This shift is projected to save staff time across SKHHP and member
jurisdictions leading to a more efficient administrative process and providing additional staff time to other
priorities during the first year of each biennial budget and work plan cycle. The Executive Board was briefed on
the concept at the November 21, 2025 meeting and supported advancing the concept. Additional information
was requested and this agenda topic is tailored to that request.

The founding SKHHP Interlocal Agreement (ILA) provides that the Executive Board has the responsibility and
authority to “create and implement an annual work plan approved by the Executive Board to guide the work of
SKHHP Staff” (SKHHP ILA, p.4) and that the “Executive Board will have the power to develop and approve an
annual budget and annual work plan for SKHHP” (SKHHP ILA, p.7). Because of the specificity contained in the
ILA that SKHHP develop an annual work plan and budget, an amendment to the SKHHP ILA is required to
transition to a biennial work plan and budget. Amendments to the ILA must be in writing and upon approval of
all legislative authorities of allmember jurisdictions (SKHHP ILA, p.18).

PROCESS

Attached to the agenda packet for the January 16, 2026 Executive Board meeting is a draft ILA amendment
reviewed and approved by City of Auburn’s Deputy City Attorney. Additional legislative materials will be
developed and shared with Staff Work Group members to transmit to the legal representatives of all SKHHP
member jurisdictions for review and approval. These materials will include the ILA amendment, an agenda bill
summary template, a resolution/ordinance template, and slides.

The topic of the SKHHP ILA amendment would be taken up on the same evening and immediately preceding
the adoption of the SKHHP work plan and budget at each SKHHP member’s respective Council meeting. These
meetings are anticipated to occur in May and June 2026. Aligning the two SKHHP topics on the same evening
at member Councils’ meetings will ensure that SKHHP has the clear authority to transition to a biennial budget
and work plan. The amendment would become effective once all parties to the agreement take legislative
action approving the change. The 2027-28 biennial budget and work plan would become effective once all
parties to the SKHHP ILA take legislative action and approve the items.



Draft Interlocal Agreement for SKHHP
South King Housing and Homelessness Partners

(Effective Date: January 1, 2019)

This Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) 1is entered into by
and between the Cities of Auburn, Burien, Covington, Des Moines,
Federal Way, Kent, Normandy Park, Renton, Tukwila, and King County,
each municipal corporations and political subdivisions of the
State of Washington (individually, a "Party" and collectively, the

"Parties"). This Agreement relates to the creation and operation
of a joint undertaking among the Parties hereto to be known as the
South King Housing and Homelessness Partners ("SKHHP"). This

Agreement 1s made pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act,
chapter 39.34 RCW, and has been authorized by the legislative body
of each jurisdiction.

WHEREAS, the Parties have a common goal to ensure the
availability of housing that meets the needs of all income levels
in South King County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to provide a sound base of housing
policies and programs in South King County and to complement the
efforts of existing public and private organizations to address
housing needs in South King County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to act cooperatively to formulate
affordable housing policies and strategies that address housing
stability, to foster efforts to preserve and provide affordable
housing by combining public funding with private-sector resources,
to support implementation of the goals of the Washington State
(the "State") Growth Management Act, related countywide planning
policies, and other local policies and programs relating to
affordable housing, and to do so efficiently and expeditiously;
and

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that the most efficient
and expeditious way for the Parties to address affordable housing
needs 1in South King County 1is through cooperative action and
pooling public and private resources; and

WHEREAS, the intent of this cooperative undertaking is not to
duplicate efforts of non-profit corporations and other entities
already providing affordable-housing-related services; and

1
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



WHEREAS, a cooperative work plan with a primary focus on the
production and preservation of affordable housing, 1s needed
because the lack of access to affordable housing is one of the key
contributors to homelessness;

NOW, THEREFORE, 1in consideration of the mutual promises,
benefits and covenants contained in this Agreement and other
valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged,
the Parties agree to the above Recitals and the following terms
and conditions:

1. DEFINITIONS. The following terms used in this Agreement
are defined as follows:

a. Administering Agency - One or more of the
Parties that will provide administrative support services on
behalf of SKHHP. The Administering Agency will be the fiscal
agent for SKHHP in accordance with the requirements of chapter
39.34 RCW. One Party could serve as the fiscal agent and another
Party could serve as the administrative home for SKHHP staff.

b. Advisory Board - A board consisting of 12 to 15
community members appointed by the Executive Board to provide
advice and recommendation to the Executive Board on land and/or
money resource allocation for affordable housing projects, input
on policy needs related to housing stability, program design and
development, recommendations for emergency shelter and other
immediate affordable housing needs, and to provide public
education and community outreach services.

C. Executive Board - The governing board for SKHHP
comprised of members as provided herein, which will act on behalf
of all Parties and as may be in the best interest of SKHHP in order
to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

d. Housing Capital Funds Account - An account
established by the Administering Agency within the SKHHP Fund for
the purpose of administering the contributions of Parties, or other
public or private entities, to affordable housing projects and
programs, to be known as the SKHHP Housing Capital Funds Account.
The amounts in the Housing Capital Funds Account will be held and
disbursed by the Administering Agency.

e. Individual Account(s) - One or more subaccounts
established within the Housing Capital Funds Account for each Party

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




to this Agreement that chooses to contribute to the Housing Capital
Funds Account. Contributions to an Individual Account from a Party
may be released only upon, and in accordance with, the written
direction of that Party.

f. SKHHP Fund - A special fund established by the
Administering Agency, as authorized by RCW 39.34.030, to be known
as the "Operating Fund of the SKHHP Executive Board". Within the
SKHHP Fund may be established wvarious accounts and subaccounts
including but not limited to a "SKHHP Operating Account" and a
"Housing Capital Funds Account".

g. SKHHP Operating Account - An account created by the
Administering Agency for the receipt of contributions from the
Parties and other private or public entities, for the purpose of
paying for the operations of and supporting the SKHHP anaruvat
biennial budget.

h. SKHHP Program Manager - The lead staff for SKHHP,
reporting to the Executive Board, responsible for carrying out the
SKHHP ammgat—Dbiennial work plan and other terms of this
Agreement.

i. SKHHP Staff - The full-time and part-time staff
hired or assigned with the responsibility for carrying out the
SKHHP work plan.

J. Sphere of Influence - The area in South King County
where SKHHP is expected to conduct its work, as further described
in Exhibit A.

2. PURPOSE. All Parties to this Agreement have
responsibility for local and regional planning for the provision
of housing affordable to residents that work and/or live in South
King County. The Parties agree to act cooperatively to formulate
affordable housing policies that address housing stability and to
foster efforts to preserve and provide affordable housing by
combining public funding with private-sector resources. In order
to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, the Parties agree to
create a Jjoint and cooperative undertaking responsible for
administering the activities described herein. The cooperative
undertaking among the Parties will be called the South King Housing
and Homelessness Partners ("SKHHP"). The Parties further intend
that this Agreement serve as a framework for all participating
municipalities within the broader SKHHP Sphere of Influence to do
the aforementioned work. The Parties encourage other cities and
other public and private entities in South King County within the
SKHHP Sphere of Influence to join the Parties in this endeavor.

3
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



3. STRUCTURE; CREATION OF JOINT BOARD. By executing this
Agreement, the Parties hereto create a joint board pursuant to RCW
39.34.030(4) to govern SKHHP. The joint board created Dby this
Agreement will be called the "Executive Board" and will be composed
of members as provided for in Section 5.a of this Agreement. The
Joint Board created in this Agreement is not a separate legal or
administrative entity within the meaning of RCW 39.34.030(3). The
Executive Board will act on behalf of all Parties and as may be in
the best interest of SKHHP in order to carry out the purposes of
this Agreement. The Executive Board 1is not authorized to own
assets or have employees.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY. In order to carry out
the purposes of SKHHP and this Agreement, the Executive Board will
have the responsibility and authority to:

a. Create and implement emr—amnvata biennial work plan
approved by the Executive Board to guide the work of SKHHP Staff.
The work plan will include activities that may benefit multiple
participating jurisdictions or individual jurisdictions. The work
plan activities will be consistent with the purpose described in
this Agreement.

b. Provide recommendations to the Parties regarding
the allocation of public and private funding for affordable housing
purposes.

C. Direct the Administering Agency to enter into
agreements with third parties for the use and application of public
and private funds contributed by individual Parties to the SKHHP
Housing Capital Funds Account established in Section 14, under
terms and conditions as may be agreed by the individual
contributing Parties, as further described in Section 14. At least
annually, report to the Parties on the geographic distribution of
all housing capital funds as recommended by the SKHHP Executive
Board.

d. Guide the SKHHP Staff in the performance of the
following duties:

i. Provide recommendations to the Parties regarding
local and regional affordable housing policies.
SKHHP Staff will assist the Parties in developing
strategies and programs to achieve State Growth
Management Act housing goals, growth targets, local

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



Comprehensive Plan Housing Element goals, and local
housing strategy plans, as appropriate.

ii. SKHHP Staff will provide technical assistance to
any Party considering adoption of land use
incentives or requirements, or affordable housing
programs. SKHHP Staff will research model
programs, develop draft legislation, prepare
briefing materials and make presentations to
planning commissions and councils on request by a
Party. SKHHP Staff will assist Parties in
developing strategies and programs to implement
county-wide affordable housing policies to meet
State Growth Management Act objectives, growth
targets, local Comprehensive Plan Housing Element
goals, and 1local housing strategy plans for an
equitable and rational distribution of low- and
moderate-income housing.

iii. Facilitate cooperation between the private and
public sector with regard to the provision of
affordable housing. SKHHP Staff will communicate
directly with private developers, financial
institutions, non-profit corporations and other
public entities to assist in the implementation of
affordable housing projects. SKHHP Staff will work
directly with any Party to provide technical
assistance with regard to the public funding of
affordable housing projects and the implementation
of affordable housing regulatory agreements for
private developments.

iv. SKHHP Staff will also identify public and private
sites that are available for affordable housing and
develop affordable housing alternatives for such
sites.

V. After the Housing Capital Fund is created, develop
standard regulatory agreements acceptable to
private and public financial institutions to
facilitate the availability of funding for private
and public projects containing affordable housing.

vi. Provide other technical advice to any Party upon
request and to enter into agreements to provide
technical assistance to other public entities on a
reimbursable basis.

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



vii. Provide support and educational activities and to
monitor legislative and regulatory activities and
proposed policy changes related to affordable
housing at the county, state and federal levels.
Ensure that the Parties to this Agreement have a
strong South King County voice in regional decision
making.

viii. After the Housing Capital Fund is created, develop
and carry out procedures for monitoring of
affordable units and to administer direct service
housing programs on behalf of any Party. Such
direct service housing programs may include but are
not limited to relocation assistance programs, rent
voucher and/or deposit loan programs.

ix. Work directly with other public and private
entities for the development of affordable housing
policies and encourage the provision and
preservation of affordable housing.

X. Work with the Advisory Board appointed under this
Agreement and South King County agencies working on
regional housing stability and housing

affordability, identify  trends and promising
practices, and mobilize those agencies to support
South King County positions in regional decision-
making forums.

x1i. Support public and private fundraising efforts of
public and private entities (including non-profit
corporations) to raise funds to carry out the
purposes of this Agreement. Enter into agreements
with those entities for the use of such funds in
order to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

xii. As directed by the Executive Board, accept public
and private funding, invest those funds in
accordance with State law, and take other
appropriate and necessary action to carry out the
purposes of this Agreement.

5. EXECUTIVE BOARD.
a. Membership. SKHHP will be governed by an Executive
Board composed of either an elected official or City

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



Manager/Administrator for each city and the King County Executive,
or their designated representative, of each Party. However, there
will not be more than two members on the Executive Board
representing cities with population 1less than 5,000 persons,
unless approved by the Executive Board. In the event that there
are more than two Parties to this Agreement with population less
than 5,000 persons, then those Parties will propose to the
Executive Board for the Executive Board's approval, a method for
shared membership on the Executive Board by those Parties.

Municipalities, local governments and public agencies within the
Sphere of Influence may become Parties to this Agreement with
representation on the Executive Board described in this Section 5,
upon satisfaction of the requirements of Section 20.

Any member of the Executive Board representing more than one Party
must be approved by the chief executive officer of those Parties
being represented by the shared Executive Board member. The
Executive Board will administer this cooperative undertaking under
the terms of this Agreement and under any procedures adopted by
the Executive Board.

b. Chair. The Chair of the Executive Board will be
elected by the members of the Board from the Board membership;
will preside over all meetings of the Executive Board; and will,
in the absence of a Program Manager provided for in Section 6 of
this Agreement, process issues, organize meetings and provide for
administrative support as required by the Executive Board. The
Chair will serve a one-year term, but may be reelected by the
Executive Board.

C. Alternate Member. Each member of the Executive
Board may designate one alternate member who will serve in the
place of the member on the Executive Board during the member's
absence or inability to serve. Notice of the designation will be
provided to the Chair of the Executive Board. An alternate member
may only vote on behalf of the appointing Party if the Chair has
received written notice of the alternate's appointment.

d. Powers. The Executive Board will have the power to
(1) develop and approve ap—annwatra biennial budget and aapuwad
biennial work plan for SKHHP; (2) adopt procedures for the
administration of SKHHP (including securing any necessary legal

counsel) and for the conduct of meetings; (3) make
recommendations to the Parties concerning planning, policy,
programs and the funding of affordable housing projects; (4)

establish policies for the expenditure of SKHHP budgeted items;
(5) designate one or more

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



Administering Agencies to carry out the terms of this Agreement;

(6) establish a special fund with the Administering Agency as
authorized by RCW 39.34.030, to be known as the “Operating Fund of
the SKHHP Executive Board” (“SKHHP Fund”) within which Fund may be
established wvarious accounts and subaccounts including but not
limited to a “SKHHP Operating Account” (into which will Dbe
deposited funding for the SKHHP operating budget) and a “Housing
Capital Funds Account”; (7) hold regular meetings on those dates
and at those places as the Executive Board may designate; (8)
direct the Administering Agency to enter 1into contracts and
agreements for the provision of personnel and other necessary
services to SKHHP, including accounting and legal services and
the purchase of insurance, and authorize the Administering Agency
to execute such other contracts, agreements or other legal
documents necessary with public and private entities for SKHHP to
carry out its purposes; (9) establish the responsibilities for the
SKHHP Program Manager, direct and oversee the Administering Agency
in the hiring process and performance review for that position
and direct and oversee the activities of the SKHHP Program
Manager; (10) appoint members of the Advisory Board; (l11) assist
with incorporating and/or work with a non-profit corporation to
accept grants, donations and other funds on behalf of SKHHP and
direct the Administering Agency to enter into contracts or other
agreements with such agency for the use of those funds to carry
out the purposes of this Agreement; and (12) take whatever other
action is necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

6. ADMINISTRATION AND OVERSIGHT. The Executive Board will
have final decision-making authority on behalf of SKHHP over all
legislative and administrative matters within the scope of this
Agreement. The Executive Board may delegate responsibility for
general oversight of the operations of SKHHP to a Program Manager.
The SKHHP Program Manager will submit quarterly budget performance
and progress reports on the status of the work program elements to
the Executive Board and the legislative body of each Party. The
reports and their contents will be in a form acceptable to the
Executive Board.

The Executive Board will, by two-thirds supermajority vote,
designate one or more of the Parties to serve as the Administering
Agency, which will provide administrative support services on
behalf of SKHHP. The Administering Agency will be the fiscal agent
for SKHHP in accordance with the requirements of chapter 39.34
RCW. Each Party that serves in the capacity of Administering
Agency hereby agrees to comply with the terms of this Agreement
applicable to the Administering Agency in order to permit SKHHP to
carry out 1its purposes. SKHHP will Dbe staffed with personnel

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



provided by the Parties and/or independent contractors contracting
with the Administering Agency on behalf of SKHHP.

Any Party providing personnel to SKHHP will remain solely
responsible for the continued payment of all compensation and
benefits to those personnel as well as for any worker's
compensation claims. All Parties will cooperate fully in assisting
SKHHP to provide the services authorized in this Agreement.

7. MEETINGS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD.

a. Frequency. The Executive Board will meet as often
as it deems necessary, but not less often than quarterly.

b. Quorum. A quorum at any meeting of the Executive
Board will consist of the Board members (or alternates) who
represent a simple majority of the Board's membership. Executive
Board members (or alternates) may participate in any meeting by
phone or wvideo conferencing for all purposes, including but not
limited to voting and establishing a gquorum.

C. Action. No action may be taken except at a meeting
where a quorum exists. Action by the Executive Board requires an
affirmative vote by a majority of the Board's membership, provided
however, that a supermajority (two-thirds of Board members) will
be required to appoint the Administering Agency, to add a new Party
to this Agreement, or to modify the proposed contribution
methodology for dues and assessments (see Section 15). Official
action by the Executive Board may be conducted by motion,
resolution, declaration, or other means as determined to be
necessary by the Executive Board, provided however, appointment of
the Administering Agency or Agencies shall be completed by
resolution. All official action of the Executive Board shall be
recorded in its official minutes. Each Executive Board member, or
his or her alternate, will have one vote on any proposed action;
except that shared member voting shall be in accordance with the
Executive Board's approval under Section 5 (a). Proxy voting will
not be allowed. To the extent applicable to meetings of the
Executive Board, the Executive Board will comply with applicable
requirements of the Washington State Open Public Meetings Act
(chapter 42.30 RCW)

8. ADVISORY BOARD. The Executive Board will create an
Advisory Board to provide advice and recommendation to the
Executive Board on land and/or money resource allocation for
affordable housing projects, input on policy needs related to
housing stability, program design and development, recommendations

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



for emergency shelter and other immediate affordable housing
needs, and to provide public education and community outreach
services. The Advisory Board will be created before the end of
the first year of SKHHP operations (with the start of the year
defined as the hiring of the SKHHP Program Manager). The Advisory
Board will consist of not more than fifteen (15) and not less than
twelve (12) community members. The Executive Board will appoint
members to the Advisory Board. Members appointed to the Advisory
Board must have knowledge and understanding of affordable housing,
be committed to the furtherance of affordable housing in South
King County, and represent diverse community perspectives.
Appointments will be for a four-year term with service limited to
a total of two consecutive terms. The Executive Board will adopt
procedures for the convening and administration of the Advisory
Board. A member may be removed from the Advisory Board by the
Executive Board with or without cause on a majority wvote of
membership of the Executive Board.

9. MEETINGS OF ADVISORY BOARD.

a. Frequency. The Advisory Board will meet as often
as it deems necessary, but not less often than quarterly.

b. Quorum. A gquorum at any meeting of the Advisory
Board will consist of the Board members who represent a simple
majority of the Board's membership. Advisory Board members may
participate in any meeting by phone or video conferencing for all
purposes, including but not limited to voting and establishing a
quorum.

C. Action. No action may be taken except at a meeting
where a quorum exists. Action by the Advisory Board requires an
affirmative vote by a majority of those members attending a Board
meeting where a quorum exists. Official action by the Advisory
Board may be conducted by motion, resolution, declaration, or other
means as determined to be necessary by the Advisory Board. Proxy
voting is not allowed. To the extent applicable to meetings of
the Advisory Board, the Advisory Board will comply with applicable
requirements of the Washington State Open Public Meetings Act
(chapter 42.30 RCW).

10. AGREEMENT DURATION. This Agreement will be in full force
and effect for a period commencing as provided in Section 34, and
ending December 31 2020. This Agreement will automatically renew
for successive two-year terms, unless sooner terminated under the
provisions of this Agreement.

10
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time by affirmative vote of a majority of the
legislative bodies of the Parties to this Agreement.

Upon termination of this Agreement, all property acquired during
the life of the Agreement will be disposed of in the following
manner:

a. all property contributed without charge by any
Party will revert to the contributing Party;

b. all property purchased on behalf of SKHHP after the
effective date of this Agreement will be distributed to the Parties
based on each Party's pro rata contribution to the overall budget
at the time the property was purchased;

C. except as provided in Subsection d. below, all
unexpended or reserve funds will be distributed to the Parties
based on each Party's pro rata contribution to the overall budget
in effect at the time the Agreement is terminated;

d. all uncommitted monies in the Housing Capital Funds
Account will be distributed to the Parties by remitting the total
uncommitted amounts remaining in each Party's Individual Account
(as described in Section 14) to that Party; and

e. each Party that has funded a project through the
Housing Capital Funds Account will Dbe substituted for the
Administering Agency with regard to all project financing
documents, and the Administering Agency will be released from
further obligations with respect thereto.

12. WITHDRAWAL. If a Party wishes to withdraw from
participation in this Agreement, it may do so after the initial
two year term if it first gives three months advance written notice
to the Executive Board of its intention to withdraw, which notice
will be due on or before October 1, 2020. If notice of an intent
to withdraw is timely received, withdrawal will be effective as of
11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2020. The initial members of SKHHP
agree they will participate for at least the first two years of
the collaboration.

After January 1, 2021, an opportunity is provided once per year
for a Party to withdraw from this Agreement. Under this provision,
advance written notice must be provided to the Executive Board on
or before July 1, of its intention to withdraw from participation
in the Agreement, effective as of 11:59 p.m. on December 31st of
that current year.

11
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




Any Party withdrawing from this Agreement will remain legally and
financially responsible for any obligation incurred by the Party
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited
to any project financing documents executed by the Administering
Agency on behalf of that Party, during the time the withdrawing
Party was a member of SKHHP. A notice of withdrawal may be revoked
by the Party that submitted the notice only by approval of a
majority of the Executive Board to accept the revocation. Any
Party that provides written notice of its intent to withdraw may
continue to vote on all matters before the Executive Board prior
to the effective date of its withdrawal, except the budget and
work plan for the following yeaxrbiennium.

13. BUDGET. The fiscal year for SKHHP will be January 1 to
December 31 of any year. The first year budget and anticipated
second year budget for SKHHP are attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. Approval of
this Agreement by the legislative body of each Party includes
approval of the first year SKHHP budget. For subsequent years, on
or before June 1lst of each year, a recommended operating budget
and work plan for SKHHP for the next budget year will be prepared,
reviewed and recommended by the Executive Board and transmitted to
each Party. The recommended operating budget will contain an
itemization of all categories of budgeted expenses and will contain
an itemization of the amount of each Party's contribution,
including in-kind services, toward that budget. Contributions to
the SKHHP ammgat—biennial budget may also come from other public
or private entities. The Executive Board will approve
acceptance of those contributions.

a. No recommended budget or work plan will become
effective until approved by the legislative body of each Party and
adopted by the Executive Board, except for SKHHP's first vyear
(2019) . For the first year, the budget will be approved as part of
the approval of this Agreement, and the first year work plan must
be approved by the Executive Board. Once the legislative body of
each Party has approved its contribution to SKHHP, either
separately or through its budget process, and the SKHHP budget has
been adopted by the Executive Board, each Party will be obligated
to make whatever contribution(s) is budgeted for that Party. If a
Party does not approve the work plan or budget in a timely manner,
the Executive Board may adopt the amawat—Dbiennial budget and work
plan with a two-thirds majority vote.

b. FEach Party's contribution(s) will be transmitted to
SKHHP on a quarterly basis at the beginning of each gquarter unless

12
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




otherwise provided in the budget document. Each Party will specify
the amount of its contribution to be deposited by the Administering
Agency into the SKHHP Operating Account, as well as the amount, if
any, to be deposited into the Party's Individual Account within
the SKHHP Housing Capital Funds Account established by Section 14.

C. If any Party is delinquent by more than three months
in the payment of its approved operating budget contribution to
the SKHHP Operating Account, that Party will not be entitled to
vote on matters before the Executive Board until the delinquency
has been paid. A Party's decision not to contribute funds to its
Individual Account, or its delinquency in funding the same will
not affect that Party's voting rights on the Executive Board.

14. HOUSING CAPITAL FUNDS ACCOUNT ESTABLISHED; PROCEDURES

FOR ADMINISTERING HOUSING CAPITAL FUNDS ACCOUNT CONTRIBUTIONS. If
authorized by resolution of the Executive Board, the Administering
Agency may establish and maintain an account within the SKHHP Fund
for the purpose of administering the contributions of Parties, or
other public or private entities, to affordable housing projects
and programs, to Dbe known as the SKHHP Housing Capital Funds
Account. The amounts in the Housing Capital Funds Account will be
held and disbursed by the Administering Agency as described in
this Agreement.

a. Within the Housing Capital Funds Account, a sub-
account will be established for each Party to this Agreement that
chooses to contribute to the Housing Capital Funds Account. Such
sub-accounts are collectively referred to as the "“Individual
Accounts.” Contributions to an Individual Account from a Party may
be released only upon, and 1in accordance with, the written
direction of that Party.

b. A  subaccount will Dbe established within each
Individual Account for each project or program funded in whole or
part by a Party from its Individual Account. Such sub-accounts
are referred to as "Project Accounts."

C. The Administering Agency will maintain records
sufficient to separately track the deposits, withdrawals and
interest earnings, within each Individual Account and each Project
Account, and will provide quarterly reports to all Parties as to
the status of funds in each Individual Account and Project Account.
The Administering Agency's responsibilities under this Section may
be delegated to the SKHHP Program Manager to the extent consistent
with applicable law and as the Administering Agency and Executive
Board may agree.

13
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




d. Funds transmitted to SKHHP for deposit in the
Housing Capital Funds Account will be held by the Administering
Agency on behalf of SKHHP until directed for application to a
specific project or program by the contributing Party. Uncommitted
funds in an Individual Account will be remitted to the contributing
Party within 45 days of receipt of written request from the Party
signed by i1its chief executive officer, or wupon the Party's
withdrawal from SKHHP in accordance with the terms of Section 12,
or on the dissolution of SKHHP per Section 11.

e. Funds held by the Administering Agency on behalf of
SKHHP will be subject to laws applicable to public funds, including
but not limitations on investments for public funds as provided in
State law and the State constitutional limitations on the gifting
of public funds. Investment earnings will be credited to each
Individual Account and Subaccount on a pro rata basis.

f. The Executive Board will develop standard forms of
approvals and agreements to be used in the application of funds
contributed to the Housing Capital Funds Account (collectively
referred to as "project financing documents"), consistent with the
following goals and procedures:

i. Each Party choosing to participate in funding a
project or program through the Housing Capital
Funds Account will by action of its legislative
body authorize the application of a specified
amount of its Individual Account monies to such
project or program, and will authorize and direct
the SKHHP Executive Board, the SKHHP Program
Manager, and the Administering Agency to take such
actions as necessary to accomplish this. The
Executive Board will recommend to the individual
legislative bodies various terms to accompany their
authorizations, and the legislative body
authorizations will at a minimum include terms
related to:

1. amount of funds allocated;

2. project description, including minimum
affordability requirements, if any;

3. nature of the funding commitment (loan, grant,
or other);

4. in the event the funding commitment is provided
as a loan, the general repayment terms including
but not limited to the term of the loan and
applicable, interest rate(s); and

14
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



5. a general description of the security interests,
if any, to be recorded in favor of the Party.

ii. For each individual housing project or program to
be funded through the Housing Capital Funds
Account, the developer, owner or administrator of
such project or program (generally referred to as
the “developer”), will enter into the necessary set
of agreements (project financing documents) with
the Administering Agency. The project financing
documents will specify that the Administering
Agency 1is acting as administering agency on behalf
of each Party that 1s providing Housing Capital
Funds Account funding to the project or program
pursuant to this Agreement and RCW
39.34.030(4), and will identify each
participating funding Party. The project financing
documents will be consistent with general forms of
agreement approved by the Executive Board and the
terms and conditions approved by the legislative
bodies of the funding Parties. To the extent
permitted by law, the project financing agreements
will incorporate all terms and conditions relative
to the use and (if applicable) repayment of such
funds, and provide for transfer of the Housing
Capital Funds Account monies from the funding
Parties to the developer.

iid. Funding contributions to, and repayments (if any)
from, specific projects and programs will Dbe
recorded by the Administering Agency, including
recording of monies deposited and withdrawn from
each Party's Individual Account and Project
Accounts. Repayments (if any) under any project
financing agreement will be applied pro rata to the
funding Parties' Individual Accounts based on the
ratio of funding contributed to the project by each
Party, unless the funding Parties otherwise agree.

iv. Unless the Parties funding a project or program
through the Housing Capital Funds Account otherwise
agree, a default, termination or other action
against a developer or other third party may be
declared only after securing approval in writing of
the chief executive officers of funding Parties
which together have contributed not less than 51%
of the total SKHHP member funding to the project.
The Administering Agency will provide reasonable

15
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




notice and information regarding the status of
projects as necessary to each funding Party's chief
executive officer to allow them to make a timely
decision 1in this regard. Funding Parties not
consenting to such default, termination or other
action will be Dbound by the decision of the
majority. All funding Parties will be obligated on
a pro rata basis (based on their contributions to
the project) to pay to the Administering Agency its
reasonable costs and expenses incurred as a result
of declaring a default, terminating an agreement or
taking other action against a developer or other
third party. Any funds recovered through such
enforcement proceedings will be allocated to the
funding Parties Individual Accounts pro rata based
on their respective funding contributions to a
project.

V. The Executive Board may from time to time authorize
the Administering Agency to administer housing
project agreements entered into before the
effective date of this Agreement, upon terms
consistent with this Agreement and subject to the
consent of the Administering Agency and the Parties
to such agreements.

15. DUES, ASSESSMENTS AND BUDGET AMENDMENTS. Contributions
to the SKHHP Operating fund will be based on groupings of like-
sized cities (based on population), or whatever contribution
methodology is approved by a two-thirds majority of the Executive
Board. Funding for the activities of SKHHP will be provided solely
through the budgetary process. Unless otherwise specified in this
Agreement, no dues, charges or assessments will be imposed or
required of the Parties except upon unanimous vote of the
membership of the Executive Board and ratification by the
legislative body of each Party subject to the dues, charges or
assessments. An approved budget (the overall revenues and
expenditures) will not be modified wuntil approved by the
legislative body of each Party and finally adopted by the Executive
Board. If a Party agrees to totally fund an additional task to the
work program, not currently approved in the budget, the task may
be added to the work plan and the budget amended to reflect the
funding of the total cost of such task by the requesting Party,
upon approval by a majority of the membership of the Executive
Board without approval by the individual Parties. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, contributions by a Party to its Individual Account
within the Housing Capital Funds Account will be solely within the

16

SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



discretion of that Party and are not considered “dues or
assessments.”

16. PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS. Records of SKHHP will be held
by the Administering Agency, in addition to any records the Parties
themselves may retain concerning their participation in SKHHP.
These records may 1include meeting agendas, meeting summaries,
reports, plans, budgets, and other documents.

When a Party receives a request for records that may be held by
the Administering Agency, the Party will refer the request to its
own Executive Board member. The Party's Executive Board member
will then work with the Administering Agency to gather all
responsive records. The Party receiving the request should work
with its own public records staff (if any) to describe the request
with sufficient specificity to allow the Administrative Agency to
identify and ©provide the records being sought. If any
clarification of the request is required, the Party receiving the
request will obtain that clarification from the requester. All
communication with the requester will be by the Party to whom the
request was submitted.

In consultation with the Administering Agency, it will be the
responsibility of the Party to whom the request for records was
made to estimate the time it will need to produce responsive
records, determine which records are responsive to the request,
and address any redactions permitted by law. The Party that
receives the request will bear the responsibility of complying
with the Public Records Act in relation to its public records.

Nothing in this Section is intended to require a Party to collect
or produce records that are not prepared, owned, used, or retained

by that Party as contemplated by the Public Records Act.

17. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.

a. Fach Party will indemnify, defend and hold other
Parties (including without limitation the Party serving as, and
acting in 1ts capacity as, SKHHP's Administering Agency), their
officers, officials, agents and volunteers harmless from any and
all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney
fees, arising out of that Party's wrongful acts or omissions in
connection with the performance of its obligations under this
Agreement, except to the extent the injuries or damages are caused
by another Party. If there is any recovery under this Section, the
Party responsible for any wrongful acts or omissions will pay any
judgment or lien arising from the acts or omissions, including all

17
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




costs and other Parties' reasonable attorney's fees. If more than
one Party is held to be at fault, the obligation to indemnify and
to pay costs and attorney's fees, will be only to the extent of
the percentage of fault allocated to each respective Party by a
final judgment of the court.

b. If a court of competent jurisdiction determine that
this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of
liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent
negligence of a Party (including without limitation the Party
serving as, and acting in its capacity as, SKHHP's Administering
Agency), its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the
Party's liability hereunder will be only to the extent of the
Party's negligence. It 1is further specifically and expressly
understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes
the Party's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance Title 51
RCW, solely for the purpose of this indemnification. This waiver
has been mutually negotiated by the Parties. The provisions of
this Section will survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

C. FEach Party (including without limitation the Party
serving as, and acting in its capacity as, SKHHP's Administering
Agency) will give the other Parties proper notice of any claim or
suit coming within the purview of these indemnities.

18. INSURANCE. The Executive Board, SKHHP Program Manager and
the Administering Agency will take such steps as are reasonably
practicable to minimize the liability of the Parties associated
with their participation in this Agreement, including but not
limited to the utilization of sound business practice. The
Executive Board will determine which, if any, insurance policies
may be reasonably practicably acquired to cover the operations of
SKHHP and the activities of the Parties pursuant to this Agreement
(which may include general liability, errors and omissions,
fiduciary, crime and fidelity insurance), and will direct the
acquisition of same.

19. AMENDMENTS. Any amendments to this Agreement must be in
writing. This Agreement may be amended upon approval of at least
two-thirds of the legislative bodies of all Parties to this
Agreement, evidenced by the authorized signatures of those Parties
as of the effective date of the amendment. However, any amendment
to this Agreement affecting the terms and conditions of membership
on the Executive Board, powers of the Executive Board, voting
rights of Executive Board members, Party contribution

18
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement




responsibilities, hold harmless and indemnification requirements,
provisions regarding duration, termination or withdrawal, or the
conditions of this Section will require consent of the legislative
authorities of all Parties. This Section will not be construed to
require amendment of this Agreement for the addition of a new Party
contemplated under Section 20 or for any related revision to
Executive Board membership authorized in Section 5(a).

20. ADDITIONAL PARTIES. Municipalities, 1local governments
and public agencies within the SKHHP Sphere of Influence may, on
execution of the Agreement and approval of the budget and work
plan by its legislative body, become a Party to this Agreement on
affirmative vote of a two-thirds majority of the membership of the
Executive Board. The Executive Board will determine by a vote of
a majority of its membership what, if any, funding obligations the
additional Party will commit to as a condition of becoming a Party
to this Agreement.

21. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity of any clause, sentence,
paragraph, subdivision, section or portion of this Agreement, will
not affect the wvalidity of the remaining provisions of the
Agreement.

22 . CONFLICT RESOLUTION. Whenever any dispute arises between
the Parties or between a Party or Parties, the Executive Board, or
the Administering Agency (referred to collectively in this Section
as the “Parties”) under this Agreement which is not resolved by
routine meetings or communications, the parties agree to seek
resolution of such dispute in good faith by meeting, as soon as
feasible. The meeting will include the Chair of the Executive
Board, the SKHHP Program Manager, and the representative(s) of the
Parties involved in the dispute. If the parties do not come to an
agreement on the dispute, any party may pursue mediation through
a process to be mutually agreed to in good faith between the
parties within 30 days, which may include binding or nonbinding
decisions or recommendations. The mediator(s) will be individuals
skilled in the legal and business aspects of the subject matter of
this Agreement. The parties to the dispute will share equally the
costs of mediation and assume their own costs.

23. SURVIVABILITY. Notwithstanding any provision in this
Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of Section 10 (Agreement
Duration), Section 11 (Termination of Agreement), Section 12
(Withdrawal), Section 16 (Public Records Requests), and Section 17
(Indemnification and Hold Harmless) will remain operative and in
full force and effect, regardless of the withdrawal or termination
of any Party or the termination of this Agreement.

19
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



24 . WAIVER. No term or provision of this Agreement will be
deemed waived and no breach excused unless that waiver or consent
is in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have waived or
consented.

25. SUBSEQUENT BREACH. Waiver of any default will not be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent default. Waiver of breach of
any provision of this Agreement will not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach and will not be construed to be
a modification of the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be
such through written approval of all Parties.

26. NOTICE. Any notice to the Executive Board will be in
writing and will be addressed to the Chair of the Executive Board
and to the SKHHP Program Manager. In the absence of a SKHHP
Program Manager, notice will Dbe given to the chief executive
officer of the Administering Agency. Any notice to an Officer or
Party will be sent, to the address specified by the chief executive
officer of the Party.

27. ASSIGNMENT. No Party may sell, transfer or assign any
of its rights or benefits under this Agreement without Executive
Board approval.

28. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and any rights,
remedies, or obligations provided for in this Agreement will be
governed, construed, and enforced 1n accordance with the
substantive and procedural laws of the State. The Parties agree
that the venue for any legal action under this Agreement is in the
County in which a project is located, provided that the venue for
any legal action against King County may be filed in accordance
with RCW 36.01.050.

29. RETAINED RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY. Parties retain
the responsibility and authority for managing and maintaining
their own internal systems and programs related to affordable
housing activities.

30. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. FEach Party to this Agreement
is an independent contractor with respect to the subject matter of
this Agreement. No joint venture or partnership is formed as a
result of this Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement will make any employee of one Party an
employee of another party for any purpose, including, but not
limited to, for withholding of taxes, payment of benefits, worker's

20
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



compensation pursuant to Title 51 RCW, or any other rights or
privileges accorded by virtue of their employment. No Party assumes
any responsibility for the payment of any compensation, fees,
wages, benefits or taxes to or on behalf of any other Party's
employees. No employees or agents of one Party will be deemed, or
represent themselves to be, employees of another Party.

31. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIERIES. This Agreement is for the
benefit of the Parties only, and no third party will have any
rights under this agreement.

32. NONDISCRIMINATION. The Parties will comply with the
nondiscrimination requirements of applicable federal, state and
local statutes and regulations.

33. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be signed in
counterparts and, if so signed, will be deemed one integrated
Agreement.

34. FILING AND EFFECTIVE DATE; PRIOR AGREEMENTS. This

Agreement will become effective January 1, 2019, subject to its
approval by the legislative bodies of all jurisdictions who are
members of SKHHP as of January 1, 2019, and, pursuant to RCW
39.34.040, upon recording this Agreement or posting this Agreement
on a Party's web site or other electronically retrievable public
source. Although this Agreement may be approved and signed by a
Party after the Agreement's effective date, all acts consistent
with the authority of this Agreement that occur on or after January
1, 2019, are hereby ratified and affirmed, and the terms of this
Agreement will be deemed to have applied.

(Signature Page Follows)

21
SKHHP Interlocal Agreement



2026 State Legislative
Update

Dorsol Plants, SKHHP Program Coordinator

SKHHP Executive Board
Updated on January 16, 2026 at 10:15 AM




SKHHP 2026 Legislative Priority

South King County is facing a growing affordable
housing crisis. In order to address this crisis, we need
to fund aspects of affordable housing that include:

« Homeownership for moderate income households
and below

» Preservation of naturally occurring affordable
housing (NOAH)

» Land acquisition to secure permanent affordability
» Permanent supportive housing (PSH)

* Infrastructure around affordable housing
developments

» Workforce housing; especially smaller sized units
below 60% AMI and family sized units at all income
levels




2026 Legislative Session Timeline

Q 12 Jan. Q4 Feb. Q 17 Feb. Qz March Q 12 March

. First Day of 2026 . Policy Committee 1 Chamber of Origin ' Opposite . Sine Die
' Legislative ' Cutoff ' Cutoff ' Chamber Fiscal !
' Session : : ' Committee Cutoff :
—e ° o ° ° ° ° ° o >
Opposite Chamber
. AWC’s City Action  : Fiscal Committee . Policy Committee . Opposite Chamber
' Days 2026 ' Cutoff ' Cutoff ' Cutoff

(V21-22dan. ()9 Feb. (") 25 Feb. (") 6 March




Governor’s Capital Budget Proposal

$225 million for creating and
preserving affordable housing homes
through the Housing Trust Fund (HTF)

« $81 million for developing
affordable multi-family rental
projects

« $73 million for the
homeownership program

« $50 million Housing Trust Fund
Preservation program

« $20 million to acquire and
preserve mobile and

manufactured home communities.
P

SKala




HB 1717 - Creating a sales and use tax remittance
program for affordable housing.

Provides a 50% remittance of
state and local sales/use taxes
paid during the construction of
affordable housing if 50% of the
units serve families below 80%
Area Median Income (AMI) for a
minimum of 40 years.



https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary?BillNumber=1717&Year=2025&Initiative=False

HB 1717 - Creating a sales and use tax

remittance program for affordable housing.

A

Affordable Housing

Construction Project

Developer pays state
sales/use taxes

il

Total Tax Pool

50% to City/County

el

Acquiring, rehabilitating, or constructing
affordable housing

Acquiring real property for affordable
housing

Funding operations & maintenance of new
units of affordable housing or PSH
Operation and delivery of behavioral health
services

50% to Developer

SK



https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary?BillNumber=1717&Year=2025&Initiative=False

SB 6028 - Establishing a revolving loan fund for mixed-
iIncome affordable homeownership development.

Administered by the WSHFC, this
fund would provide financing to
develop and preserve long-term
affordable homeownership.

* Financial Support: Loans up to
$5M or 20% of total project cost.

* Income Targeting: Serving
households at or below 80%
AMI.

» Lasting Impact: 99-year
affordability covenant via
restricted resale. —

SKala



https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=6028&Year=2025&Initiative=false

Missing Middle: Starter Home Production

HB 2151 — Factory Built Housing
Standards ’

HB 2346 —Performance-Based

Buildina Codos for Middl
Heusihg

SB 6015 — Permit-Ready
Residential Building Plans



https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=2151&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=2346&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=6015&Year=2025&Initiative=false

Missing Middle: Starter Home Production

HB 2151 — Factory Built Housing
Standards ’

HB 2381 — Performance-Based
Building Codes for Low-Rise
Residential Buildings

SB 6015 — Permit-Ready
Residential Building Plans



https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=2151&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2381&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary/?BillNumber=6015&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
I

Providing a property tax valuation freeze for senior citizens and disabled 1/12 - Retained in
HB 1179 veterans. Present Status

HB 1443 1/12 — Retained in
SB 5332 Concerning mobile dwellings. Present Status
1/15 — Public

Hearing in Finance

HB 1717 1/12 — Retained in
SB 5591 Creating a sales and use tax remittance program for affordable housing. Present Status

HB 1763 Providing a local government option for the funding of essential affordable 1/12 — Retained in
SB 5576 housing programs. Present Status
1/15 — Public

Hearing in Finance

HB 1859 Expanding opportunities for affordable housing developments on properties 1/21 — Executive

SB 5885 owned by religious organizations. Session in Housing

Allowing counties or cities to impose a real estate excise tax for the purpose of 1/12 — Retained in
HB 1867 developing affordable housing, subject to the will of the voters. Present Status

P -

SKals

10



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1179&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1443&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5332&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1717&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5591&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1763&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5576&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1859&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5885&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1867&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
I

1/22 — Executive

HB 1974 Establishing land banking authorities. Session in Housing
Supporting wildfire mitigation by modifying RCW 82.04.29005, concerning 1/23 — Public
HB 2089 taxes on loan interest. Hearing in Finance
1/12 — Referred to
HB 2101 Exempting live presentations from retail sales and use tax. Finance
1/22 — Executive
HB 2118 Concerning common interest community restrictions. Session in Housing
Exempting nonprofits and schools from certain sales and use taxes on 1/12 — Referred to
HB 2121 services. Finance
Making the property tax exemption for multipurpose senior citizen centers 1/20 — Public
HB 2133 permanent. Hearing in Finance
Modifying and extending the adaptive housing retail sales and use tax 1/20 — Public
HB 2135 preference for disabled veterans. Hearing in Finance
1/12 — Referred to
HB 2141 Concerning building codes. Local Government
P -

SKals

11



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=1974&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2089&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2101&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2118&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2121&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2133&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2135&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2141&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
I

HB 2151

HB 2153

HB 2154

HB 2186

HB 2191

1/23 — Executive

Adopting national standards for factory built housing and commercial Session in Labor &
structures. Workplace
Prohibiting homebuyers from receiving multiple state-funded down payment 1/12 — Referred to
assistance loans or grants. Housing
1/14 — Public
Hearing in Local
Concerning land ownership by conservation districts. Government
1/16 — Public
Hearing in Tech,
Econ Deyv, &
Supporting the acquisition of federal funds to promote economic development. Veterans

1/23 — Executive

Session in Labor &
Concerning workers' wages and benefits in the construction industry. Workplace

el

SKals

12



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2151&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2153&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2154&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2186&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2191&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session

Bill Number Description

HB 2193
SB 5109 Concerning the mortgage lending fraud prosecution account.

Increasing access to data related to the safety and stability of residential
HB 2200 settings for individuals with developmental disabilities.

Standardizing city and county planning and development regulations with an
HB 2201 urban growth area.

Status

1/12 — Referred to
Appropriations
1/13 — Third reading
by Rules
1/23 — Executive
Session in Early
Learning & Human
Services
1/14 — Public
Hearing in Local
Government

Providing a real estate excise tax exemption for the sale of qualified affordable 1/12 — Referred to

HB 2227 housing.

HB 2228
SB 6001 Concerning scissor stair regulations in the state building code.

Finance
1/23 — Executive
Session in Local

Government
1/21 — Public

-

Hearing in Housing_|

e B A N B}



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2193&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5109&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2200&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2201&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2227&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2228&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6001&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025

2026 Legislative Session
I

1/23 — Executive
Session in Early
Learning & Human

Services
1/19 — Public
HB 2230 Streamlining monitoring and oversight activities related to community Hearing in Human
SB 6024 residential service business providers. Services

1/22 — Executive
Session in Housing

HB 2236 1/21 — Executive
SB 6018 Concerning the housing finance commission. Session in Housing
1/19 — Public
HB 2265 Protecting tenants from periods of extreme heat. Hearing in Housing
Encouraging permanent supportive housing, transitional housing, indoor 1/20 — Public
HB 2266 emergency housing, and indoor emergency shelters. Hearing in Housing
P -

SKals

14



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2230&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6024&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2236&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6018&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2265&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2266&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
|

1/12 — Referred to
Consumer Protection
HB 2268 Concerning residential mortgage loan escrow accounts. & Business
1/22 — Executive
HB 2269 Concerning middle housing in unincorporated areas. Session in Housing
1/14 — Public
Hearing in
Appropriations
1/13 — Public
HB 2289 Hearing in Ways &
SB 5998 Making 2025-2027 fiscal biennium supplemental operating appropriations. Means
1/15 — Public
Hearing in Capital
Budget
1/12 — Public
HB 2295 Hearing in Ways &
SB 6003 Concerning the capital budget. MebapR- | o
HiN

15



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2268&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2269&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2289&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5998&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2295&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6003&Chamber=Senate&Year=2025

2026 Legislative Session
I

Authorizing county auditors to create a voluntary property title protection 1/12 — Referred to
HB 2298 program to prevent land record fraud. Local Government
Increasing the supply of condominiums by expanding the types of 1/23 — Public
condominium buildings that may be subject to an express warranty of quality Hearing in Civil
HB 2304 and express warranty insurance coverage. Rights & Judiciary
1/22 — Public
Hearing in Capital
HB 2338 Authorizing community scaled weatherization projects. Budget
1/12 — Referred to
Civil Rights &
HB 2354 Concerning common interest communities. Judiciary
1/12 — Referred to
Finance
HB 2359 Modifying requirements and allowed uses for certain funding related to 1/21 — Executive
SB 6027 providing and maintaining affordable housing and related services. Session in Housing
P -

SKals

16



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2298&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2304&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2338&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2354&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2359&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6027&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
I

Concerning performance-based building codes for low-rise residential 1/16 - Public Hearing
HB 2381 buildings. in Local Government
Establishing statewide standards for when local governments may enforce 1/20 — Public
HB 2489 laws regulating the use of public space for life-sustaining activities. Hearing in Housing
1/12 - Retained in
SB 5398 Concerning property tax exemptions for veterans with disabilities. Present Status
Concerning the development of clear and objective standards, conditions, and 1/12 — Referred to
SB 5613 procedures for residential development. Ways & Means
Providing a real estate excise tax exemption for the sale of qualified affordable 1/12 — Referred to
SB 5647 housing. Ways & Means
1/22 — Public

Hearing in Business,
Trade, & Economic
SB 5831 Enacting the uniform mortgage modification act. Development

SKals

17



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2381&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=2489&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5398&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5613&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5647&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5831&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session

Bill Number Description Status

1/12 — Referred to
Early Learning & K-

SB 5848 Concerning school district impact fees. 12 Education
Expanding the limited sales and use tax incentive program to encourage 1/21 — Executive

SB 5884 redevelopment of underutilized property. Session in Housing
Protecting charitable organizations and ensuring the timely and secure 1/12 — Referred to

SB 5887 transfer of property designated to them. Law & Justice

Exempting assignments or substitutions of previously recorded deeds of trust
from the document recording fee and the covenant homeownership program 1/12 — Referred to

SB 5929 assessment. Ways & Means
Concerning the use of a smart access system in a residential property subject 1/16 — Executive
SB 5937 to the residential landlord-tenant act. Session in Housing
1/16 — Executive
SB 5938 Concerning the foreclosure prevention fee. Session in Housing
1/12 — Referred to
SB 5939 Creating the Washington is simply unaffordable fund. Ways & Means

SKala



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5848&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5884&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5887&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5929&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5937&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5938&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5939&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session
I

1/20 — Executive
Creating a housing assistance pilot program for youth enrolled in extended Session in Human
SB 5940 foster care. Services
1/15 — Executive
Action in Early
Learning & K-12

SB 5943 Concerning the use of school impact fees. Education
1/19 — Public
Making the property tax exemption for multipurpose senior citizen centers Hearing in Ways &
SB 5970 permanent. Means
Providing a property tax exemption for qualifying housing used as a residency 1/12 — Referred to
SB 5986 by tenants meeting certain disability criteria. Ways & Means
1/13 — Public
Hearing in
Environment,
Energy, &
SB 6008 Incentivizing grid-connected residential battery energy storage systems. Technology ~

SKila

19



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5940&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5943&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5970&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=5986&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6008&Year=2025&Initiative=false

2026 Legislative Session

Bill Number Description Status

1/22 — Executive
Session in Law &

SB 6009 Concerning direct review of administrative decisions by the court of appeals. Justice
1/21 — Public
SB 6015 Concerning permit-ready residential building plans. Hearing in Housing
1/21 — Executive
SB 6026 Concerning residential development in commercial and mixed-use zones. Session in Housing
Modifying requirements and allowed uses for certain funding related to 1/21 — Executive
SB 6027 providing and maintaining affordable housing and related services. Session in Housing
Establishing a revolving loan fund for mixed-income affordable 1/21 — Executive
SB 6028 homeownership development. Session in Housing
Concerning the development of clear and objective standards, conditions, and 1/21 — Public
SB 6054 procedures for residential development. Hearing in Housing
Encouraging permanent supportive housing, transitional housing, indoor 1/23 — Public
SB 6069 emergency housing, and indoor emergency shelters. Hearing in Housing

el

SKala



https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6009&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6015&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6026&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6027&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6028&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6054&Year=2025&Initiative=false
https://app.leg.wa.gov/BillSummary/?BillNumber=6069&Year=2025&Initiative=false

Thank you

Current as of January 16, 2026.
For the latest version, please visit the SKHHP website.



https://skhhp.org/executive-board/

	Packet_SKHHP_ExecutiveBoard_2026_1_16.pdf
	Agenda_SKHHP_ExecutiveBoard_2026_1_16.pdf
	Minutes_SKHHP_ExecutiveBoard_November_21_2025.pdf
	2026 SKHHP Executive Board Meeting Schedule.pdf
	Memo_SKHHP_ILA_Amendment_2026_1_9.pdf
	SKHHP ILA Amendment.pdf

	State Legislative Update_2026_1_16.pdf
	2026 State Legislative Update
	SKHHP 2026 Legislative Priority
	2026 Legislative Session Timeline
	Governor’s Capital Budget Proposal
	HB 1717 - Creating a sales and use tax remittance program for affordable housing.
	HB 1717 - Creating a sales and use tax remittance program for affordable housing.
	SB 6028 - Establishing a revolving loan fund for mixed-income affordable homeownership development.
	Missing Middle: Starter Home Production
	Missing Middle: Starter Home Production
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	2026 Legislative Session
	Thank you




